HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 06, 2003
8: 45 AM
TAPE HFC 03 — 78, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 8:45 AM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wi taker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
ALSO PRESENT

Representative Jim Holm Mark O Brien, Chief Contracts
O ficer, Contracting Procurenent and Appeals, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities; Wndy Redman, Vice
President, Statewi de Prograns, University of Al aska; Jay
Hogan, Deputy Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dick Cattanach, Associated General Contractors; d yde
Sniffen, Jr. Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Fair Business
Practices Section, Cvil Division (Anchorage), Departnent of
Law.

SUMVARY

HB 225 "An Act relating to certain civil actions brought
by the attorney general under nonopoly and
restraint of trade statutes; relating to the award
of damages in actions brought under those
statutes; and providing for an effective date.™

HB 225 was REPORTED out of Conmttee wth a “do
pass” recommendati on and one previously published

House Fi nance Committee 1 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



indetermnate fiscal note #1 from the Departnent
of Law.

HB 243 "An  Act establishing state agency program
performance managenent and audit powers in the
Ofice of the Governor for the evaluation of
agency prograns; and providing for an effective
date."

CS HB243 (STA) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with
“no recomendati on” and one new zero fiscal note
fromOfice of the Governor.

HB 250 "An Act relating to protests of state contract
awards, to clains on state contracts, to the
arbitration of certain state construction contract
claims, and to hearings and appeals under the
State Pr ocur enent Code; maki ng conf orm ng
anmendnents in the State Procurenent Code; and
providing for an effective date."

CSHB 250 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recomendation and one zero fiscal
note from the Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities.

#hb250

HOUSE BILL NO 250

"An Act relating to protests of state contract awards,
to clains on state contracts, to the arbitration of
certain state construction contract clains, and to
heari ngs and appeal s under the State Procurenent Code;
maki ng conform ng anendnents in the State Procurenent
Code; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE JI M HOLM SPONSOR, provided infornmation about
the bill. He noted that the bill was inportant given the
anount of contract work outstanding in the state this year.
He explained that the Associated GCeneral Contractors of
Al aska and the Departnment of Transportation had col | aborated

to create a proposal that worked for both parties. He
di scussed the difficulty of construction clains in Al aska,
due to the costs of litigation and arbitration. He noted

that arbitrations had in the past been drawn out to a point
when they were no longer financially feasible for either

party. He maintained that the bill neets the needs of both
contractors and the state, and facilitates nore expedient
negotiations, placing all parties on equal standing. He

referred to the sectional analysis of the Sponsor Statenent
as follows:

The purpose of HB 250 is to nodify the construction

House Fi nance Committee 2 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



clains process to once again create a fair and
expeditious clainms process. Specifically HB 250 wll
nodi fy the procurenent code pertaining to construction
clainms in the follow ng manner:

1. If a procurenent officer does not issue a
witten decision by the due date, t he
contractor may seek arbitration.

2. On appeals of all construction clains, the
parties can agree to binding arbitration.

3. The tinelines for deci si ons have been
ti ghtened, and redundant requirenents have been
el i m nat ed.

4. An arbitrator or hearing officer who does not
i ssue a deci si on by t he deadl i ne IS
di squalified for a year.

5. Qualifications for arbitrators and hearing
of ficers wi | be est abl i shed by t he
conmm ssioner of adm nistration in regul ation.

6. The contractor is entitled to recover sone of
the clains costs incurred.

Pronpt passage of HB 250 will expedite contractor’s

clainms and return fairness to the process.
Representative Croft referred to Section 7 of the bill and
asked if currently each side of the negotiations paid for
their own costs related to the cl ains process. He observed
that the bill would authorize full costs related to rule 82

[of the Al aska Rules of Cvil Procedure].

MARK O BRI EN, CHI EF CONTRACTS CFFI CER, CONTRACTI NG
PROCUREMENT AND APPEALS, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND
PUBLI C FACI LI Tl ES, in response to questions by
Representative Croft, confirnmed that the Dbill woul d
i ntroduce provisions under Rule 79 and Rule 82 [ Al aska Rul es
of Cvil Procedure] to the recovery of both costs and fees
for clains adjudi cated under AS 36. 30.

Representative Croft referred to a reform of the clains
process in the previous year. M. OBrien stated that the
process had existed for two years, but that this was the
first time the bill had been introduced to address issues
agreed upon by both the State and contractors. |n response
to a question by Representative Croft, M. O Brien confirned
that |last year a provision was added to collect interest on
claims back to the date upon which they were filed. He
noted that the bill does not affect that provision.

House Fi nance Committee 3 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



M. OBrien added that when the Associated Cenera
Contractors (AGC) approached the office, they were trying to
make the process faster, fairer and |ess expensive. He
stated that the bill specified tine frames and shortened
existing time franes. He noted that nost people viewed
arbitration as a better process and pointed out that the
bill made arbitration outconmes final, involving the courts
in only a few circunstances. He explained that arbitration
deci sions mght be appealed if the cases included fraud or
gross msapplication of the [|aw He stated that this
prevented a | engthy and expensive process that woul d include
both arbitration and a court case.

M. OBrien stated that the bill would put in place a
selection process ensuring a neutral third party that is
acceptable to both sides. He explained that prior to this,
the hearing officer was appointed by the comm ssioner, a
practice that contractors viewed as being unfair. He
mai ntai ned that these factors would make the process nore
expedient and inpartial.

M. OBrien pointed out that the only issue about which they
had not reached conplete agreenent was that of provisions
pertaining to Rules 79 and 82. He referred to the fiscal
note, which Ilisted associated costs. He discussed the
contractors’ viewpoint that they should be able to recoup
hearing costs and fees in order to actually recover their
court appointed awards. He noted that in the past eleven
years, clainms costs roughly averaged $145 thousand per year,
averaging from between $350 thousand and $7 thousand,
dependi ng on the conplexity and | ength of cases. In addition
there were costs and fees associated wth adjudication,
which varied based on the conplexity of litigation. These
varying costs are taken into consideration in the fisca
not e. He enphasized that these costs were not federal aid
participating, meking the costs a general fund expense.

Representative Croft addressed the concern of determning
the extent of clainms, and asked if this was mtigated by
Section 7 (b), which allowed an offer of judgnent. M.
O Brien confirnmed that this was correct, making it difficult
to calculate the costs unless one assuned that no Rule 68
of fer existed, preenpting the paynment of costs and fees. He
explained that this was the “neet or beat” rule and
sonetines resulted in the paynent of a substantial portion
of state costs. He maintained that this was a part of the
bill that the AGC and the Admnistration felt would
encourage settlenent. He stated that the Adm nistration
supports the bill

D CK CATTANACH, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ASSCCI ATED GENERAL

CONTRACTORS OF ALASKA testified via teleconference in
support of the bill. He enphasi zed the inportance of the

House Fi nance Committee 4 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



provi sions that generated the fiscal note, and added that
the fiscal note would only manifest if the Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities did not change its
pr ocedur es. In regard to the costs not being offset by
f eder al dol | ars, he maintained that contractors were
currently paying all costs. He noted exanples when
contractors paid over $250 thousand in |egal fees for a $530
thousand claim He naintained that the bill encouraged both
sides to arrive at reasonabl e anmounts.

VENDY REDMAN, VI CE PRESI DENT, STATEW DE PROGRAMS, UNI VERSI TY
OF ALASKA testified and raised concern about the section
which required mandatory arbitration in regard to snal

cl ai ns. She stated that the University had not been
considered in crafting the bill, and had requested to be
exenpted from that section. She indicated that the

University would work with the other provisions of the bill
and communicate with AGC and DOT in the comng year to
examne the small contract clains arbitration procedures.
She expressed support of the bill wth the requested
exenpti on.

In response to a question by Representative Witaker, M.
Redman stated that the anount that delineated a small claim
was | ess than $250 thousand. Represent ati ve Wi taker asked
about the rationale for requesting an exenption. M. Redman
stated that attorneys felt it would encourage nore
litigation.

Representative Croft asked why the University would be
different from other portions of state governnent. Wendy
noted that AGC and DOT had been working on the bill for over
a year, and explained that the University was not part of
that discussion and did not have the sanme types of projects,
such as roads.

Representative Stoltze pointed out that the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources and other agencies engaged in projects
different from the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities, and asked why they would not al so be exenpted.

Ms. Redman pointed out that the University was treated
differently than a state agency under the state procurenent
code. They are directed, as are the Railroad and the Courts
System under AS 36.30.005 to establish features equival ent
to the state, but are governed under the Board of Regents.
Representative Croft asked if the [Alaska State] Railroad
had been considered in the bill. M. Rednman was unaware of
t hose provi sions.

Representative Whitaker observed that factors that m ght
work for one state agency m ght not necessarily work for the
Uni versity. Wendy reiterated that the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities had a considerable

House Fi nance Committee 5 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



anount of time to work with the bill and increase their
confort |evel. She speculated that in the course of the
com ng year, the University mght increase its confort |evel
as well.

Representative Holm stated that the Al aska Railroad was in
support of and is considered in the bill

Represent ati ve Wi taker MOVED Anmendnent #1.
Sec. __ AS 36.30.005

(d) Notwi t hst andi ng the provisions of 36.30.627, the
University of Alaska is not required to arbitrate
construction contract clainms unless it specifically
agrees to such arbitration.

I n response to a question by Vi ce-Chair Meyer,
Representative \Witaker stated that he was not yet certain
where the anmendnent woul d be pl aced.

Ms. Redman referred to section 36.30.005 of the procurenent
law, not included in HB 250, and explained that the
amendnent would add a section that included that statute.
She added that the bill as witten would prevent the
University from arbitrations in small contracts, and noted
that the University desired to becone involved in such
negotiations, without it being nmandated solely on the part
of the contractor. She indicated that the anmendnent woul d
allow the University to nove forward in gaining experience
with these arbitrations.

Representative Wiitaker clarified that 36.30.005 had not yet
been included in the bill, but stated that if the anmendnent
were adopted, then the bill |anguage should be changed in a
manner to accept it.

In response to a question by Representative Stoltze, M.
Cattanach observed that the anmendnent would exenpt the
Uni versity frombinding arbitration on clainms |ess than $250
t housand. He pointed out that as the bill was witten, a
contractor could decide to challenge a decision by a hearing
officer through a third party arbitration. The University
was asking for exenption due to problens they had
experienced with binding arbitration. He stated that, since
the University had not been involved in discussions with the
Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities over the
past two years, the Departnent of Law did support the
exenpti on.

There bei ng NO OBJECTI ONS, the Anendnent was ADOPTED.

House Fi nance Committee 6 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



Representative Foster MOVED to report CSHB 250(FIN) out of
Comm ttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

CSHB 250 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recommendation and one zero fiscal note from the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities.

#hb243
HOUSE BI LL NO. 243

"An Act establishing state agency program performnce
managenent and audit powers in the Ofice of the
Governor for the evaluation of agency prograns; and
providing for an effective date."

JAY HOGAN, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

(OVB) provided information regarding the bill. He explained
that the bill would formally reinstate the internal audit
function within OVB. The bill does three things: 1)

establishes the ability of OVMB to do performance budgeti ng,
nmeasurenment and evaluation, 2) allow OB to conduct
internal audits in the executive branch, and 3) rewites the
| anguage in statute to ensure confidentiality of work
papers. He stated that the funding of the bill is included
in the Governor’s [FY 04] budget, part of which was noved
from functions that were transferred from the Governor’s
of fice. The additional cost to the OVB budget is $325
thousand, to cover the novenent of three positions and
related costs.

Representative Foster asked whether or not OWMB still
performed a managenent function. M. Hogan di scussed that
when OVB was originally established it consisted of internal
audit, managenent, planning and governnental coordination
functions. He noted that currently it was focused on budget
and governnental coordination, and that the internal audit
function had di ssi pat ed.

Representative Croft referred to Section 3, and asked when
if ever the internal audits were released to the public

M. Hogan stated that the confidentiality related to the
background work for the audits. He discussed the history of
audit functions related to background materials, and stated
that traditionally these work papers renmained confidential
indefinitely.

Representative Croft observed that while the reports were
public, the work papers remai ned confidential. He asked how
this was inpacted by the statenment “kept confidential only
to the extent required by law applicable to the agency”.
M. Hogan stated that the |ast sentence was added by the
House State Affairs Comm ttee to focus on t he
confidentiality laws that preceded the bill. He gave the

House Fi nance Committee 7 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



exanple that if state enployee records had been exam ned

any related findings would remain confidential based on
state |aw He speculated that State Affairs intended to
restrict the authority.

Representative Croft referred to Section 44.19, “internal
audit work papers confidential until released”; “can only be
confidential to the extent required by law'. He clai ned
that these statenents were not conplinentary. M. Hogan
mai ntai ned that the governor’s bill did not contain those
two sentences. Representative Croft conceded that the
second sentence provided for sonme public disclosure.

Representative Foster MOVED to report HB243 out of Commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTIONS it was so ordered.

CS HB243 (STA) was REPORTED out of Committee with “no
recommendati on” and one new zero fiscal note from Ofice of
t he Gover nor.

#hb225
HOUSE BILL NO._ 225

"An Act relating to certain civil actions brought by
the attorney general under nonopoly and restraint of
trade statutes; relating to the award of danmages in
actions brought under those statutes; and providing for
an effective date.™

CLYDE SNI FFEN, JR ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, FAI R BUSI NESS
PRACTI CES SECTION, CIVIL DI VI SI ON (ANCHORAGE), DEPARTMENT OF
LAW testified via teleconference and provided information
about the bill. He stated that an antitrust law currently
exi sted that prevented indirect purchasers from recovering
| osses in anti-trust cases. He explained that an indirect
purchaser would be a consuner who purchases a product
W t hout being aware that an “upstreani anti trust conspiracy
or violation had artificially inflated the product price.
He pointed out that as a result of current anti-trust
statutes, consumers mght not be able to receive a positive
settl enment agai nst the w ongdoer since they did not purchase
the product directly fromthe wongdoer. He gave the exanple
that the price of a product mght be kept high all the way
dowmn to the retailer, but that the fault would actually
remain with the supplier. This bill would anend current
anti-trust law, and give the Attorney General authority to
bring clainms on behalf of consuners against anti-trust
wr ongdoers “upstreant.

M. Sniffen stated that the current |law originated with the

Suprene Court case of Illinois Brick Conmpany vs. Illinois,
when the Court had stated that a suit could not be brought
“upstreant. He noted, however, that the Court had also

indicated that states had the right to craft their own anti-

House Fi nance Committee 8 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



trust | aws. He nentioned that 30 other states had anended
their laws to allow “upstreanf suits. He mai ntained that
there had been a nunber of cases when the state of Al aska
had lost mllions of dollars of potential revenue due to an
inability to bring certain anti-trust suits.

Representative Stoltze expressed concern about the price of

fuels, and asked if this bill provided tools to inpact
investigation in this area. M. Sniffen confirmed that the
bill would enable the Attorney General to bring action on

behal f of consuners should a gas price increase conspiracy
be discovered. He stated that currently such a claimcould
not be brought.

Representative Croft MOVED to report HB225 out of Conmittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTIONS, it was so ordered.

HB 225 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a “do pass”
recommendation and one previously published indeterm nate
fiscal note #1 fromthe Departnent of Law.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 9:31 AM

House Fi nance Committee 9 05/ 06/ 03 8:45 AM



